
   

 
 

 

Nottingham City Council 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

 
Date: Wednesday 9 February 2022 
 
Time:  2.00 pm 
 
Place: Ground Floor Committee Room - Loxley House, Station Street, Nottingham, 

NG2 3NG 
 
Councillors are requested to attend the above meeting to transact the following 
business 
 

 
Director for Legal and Governance 
 
Senior Governance Officer: Laura Wilson     Direct Dial: 0115 876 64301 
 

   
1  Apologies for absence  

 
 

2  Declarations of interests  
 

 

3  Minutes  
To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 5 January 2022 
 

3 - 16 

4  Together for Nottingham Plan - Progress update by the Leader  
Report of the Head of Legal and Governance 
 

17 - 18 

5  Culture Change at Nottingham City Council  
Report of the Head of Legal and Governance 
 

19 - 74 

6  Work Programme  
Report of the Head of Legal and Governance 
 

75 - 78 

In order to hold this meeting in as Covid-safe way as possible, all attendees are: 

 asked to maintain a sensible level of social distancing from others as far as 
 practically possible when moving around the building and when entering and 
 leaving the meeting room. As far as possible, please remain seated and maintain 
 distancing between seats throughout the meeting. 

 strongly encouraged to wear a face covering when entering and leaving the meeting 
 room and throughout the meeting, unless you need to remove it while speaking to 
 enable others to hear you. This does not apply to anyone exempt from wearing a 
 face covering. 

Public Document Pack



 make use of the hand sanitiser available and, when moving about the building 
 follow signs about traffic flows, lift capacities etc 
 

If you need any advice on declaring an interest in any item on the agenda, please contact 
the Governance Officer shown above, if possible before the day of the meeting  
 

Citizens attending meetings are asked to arrive at least 15 minutes before the start of the 
meeting to be issued with visitor badges 
 
Citizens are advised that this meeting may be recorded by members of the public. Any 
recording or reporting on this meeting should take place in accordance with the Council’s 
policy on recording and reporting on public meetings, which is available at 
www.nottinghamcity.gov.uk. Individuals intending to record the meeting are asked to notify 
the Governance Officer shown above in advance.



 

1 

Nottingham City Council  
 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
 
Minutes of the meeting held at Ground Floor Committee Room - Loxley House, 
Station Street, Nottingham, NG2 3NG on 5 January 2022 from 2.01 pm - 3.16 pm 
 
Membership  
Present Absent 
Councillor Anne Peach (Chair) 
Councillor Georgia Power (Vice Chair) 
Councillor Carole McCulloch (Vice Chair) 
Councillor Patience Uloma Ifediora 
Councillor Gul Nawaz Khan 
Councillor Andrew Rule 
 

Councillor Corall Jenkins 
Councillor Jane Lakey 
Councillor Sajid Mohammed 
Councillor Toby Neal 
Councillor Angharad Roberts 
Councillor Audra Wynter 
 

Colleagues, partners and others in attendance:  
Councillor David Mellen - Leader of the Council 
Clive Heaphy- Interim Corporate Director for Finance and Resources  
Laura Wilson – Senior Governance Officer 
Catherine Ziane-Pryor – Governance Officer 
 
 
48  Apologies for absence 

 
Councillor Coral Jenkins – personal reasons 
Councillor Jane Lakey – unwell 
Councillor Sajid Mohammed - leave 
Councillor Angharad Roberts – personal reasons 
Councillor Audra Wynter - leave 
 
 
49  Declarations of interests 

 
None. 
 
 
50  Minutes 

 
Subject to expanding apologies for absence to include an explanation that Councillor Coral 
Jenkins had been appointed as a member on the day of the meeting and had not had an 
opportunity to rearrange existing commitments, the minutes of the meeting held on 8 
December 2021 were confirmed as a true record and were signed by the Chair. 
 
 
51  Recovery and Improvement - Update by the Leader 

 
Councillor David Mellen, Leader of the Council, referred to the eight headings of the  
Council’s Improvement Plan of: 
 

i. Medium-Term Financial Strategy 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 5.01.22 

2 

ii. Assets; 
iii. Companies; 
iv. Capital Programme and Debt Management; 
v. Constitution; 
vi. Organisation and Culture; 
vii. Delivery Options; 
viii. Policy Framework. 

 
Highlights included the following points: 
 

a) The Recovery and Improvement Plan has been updated following broad consultation 
and will be renamed ‘Together for Nottingham’. The Improvement and Assurance 
Board (IAB) is content with the overall progress against it and the direction of travel 
of the Council’s work, but have requested costed Service Plans for each department 
to sit alongside the Plan, which are currently underway;  
 

b) The Transformation Board is meeting regularly and Business Cases for the 
transformation proposals are being worked up and tested to ensure robustness. 
Consultants have been engaged to advise and train staff for some proposals; 
 

c) A new Councillor/Officer protocol is in place to promote good working relationships 
between Councillors and officers and support the smooth and effective running of the 
Council. This is supporting the other work underway to promote a culture change 
within the organisations;  

 
d) There is a focus on the whole experience of citizens engaging with the Council to 

ensure that they get the best service possible; 
 

e) With regard to the Capital Programme, a cap has been agreed for adjusted 
borrowing, and capital spend will only be authorised for specific projects. Grant 
funding has been sought and awarded, such as the £150m grant for the Broadmarsh 
car park development. Capital receipts are being realised and the IAB is content that 
the asset realisation programme is robust and is going well; 
 

f) The new Constitution was approved by Council in September 2021 and provides 
greater clarity of accountability and an adjusted scheme of delegation. The IAB are 
content with the work that has been undertaken; 
 

g) There is ongoing work regarding the City Council’s companies. EnviroEnergy has 
been brought in-house, a contract has been agreed with Nottingham Revenue and 
Benefits, and the Council is looking at the other companies in detail. The work is 
complicated and detailed, so additional resources have been put in place. The 
Companies Governance Executive Committee meets monthly to approve and 
oversee the Council's strategic objectives across the group of companies. The IAB 
feel the Council need to work quicker in this area, but it is important to balance speed 
with effectiveness; 
 

h) The Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) is the IAB’s biggest area of concern as 
the Council has to show financial stability and plan for a four year period. The MTFS 
will be submitted to full Council in March 2022 and will remain a key ongoing piece of 
work. The in-year budget gap has reduced significantly and is moving in the right 

Page 4



Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 5.01.22 

3 

direction, with the transformation programme being key to managing the budget 
longer term; 

 
Member’s questions were responded to as follows: 
 
i) A junior minister has responded to the IAB’s third report and acknowledged the 

progress achieved and the work yet to be done. Sir Tony Redmond, Chair of the IAB, 
submits the reports as scheduled, but there is often a wait of approximately two 
months in obtaining a response, in which time a lot can change and progress is 
made. However, the Council doesn’t wait for a response to the report and continues 
to progress improvement work; 

 
j) IAB meetings are held every month and the Leader meets with the Chair of the IAB 

every week. Whilst the IAB is robust with the Council, it is clear that it wants the 
Council to succeed in setting its budget. There is willingness to hold additional 
meetings to ensure there is clarity on what is required; 
 

k) Consultation on the budget is ongoing, but so far events have been well attended 
and responses have been received from a broad range of citizens. Online 
consultation responses are encouraged, but there is also the opportunity to complete 
paper copy consultations. Socially distanced face-to-face consultation sessions have 
proved popular at City Council and community venues;  
 

l) Achieving 100% citizen response is not a realistic target, but to date there have been 
in excess of 700 individual consultation responses received, which is more than ever 
before. There is no complacency in seeking and implementing new and alternative 
methods of engagement with the ongoing aspiration to achieve greater engagement; 
 

m) With regard to customer care, questioning if things can be done better and examining 
the individual citizen interaction perspective of services is ongoing; 
 

n) Generally, as more of the population work from home, there is a change to 
organisation and culture with different engagement opportunities available as 
alternatives to attending council sites. In addition to the Council reaching out, citizens 
do actively contact the Council, such as through libraries to find information and 
request paper printed forms; 
 

o) The operational improvement consultants are working to advise and train staff to 
embed the culture change so that they can continue improvement work themselves 
once the consultants have left. The consultant company Newton Europe has worked 
with staff in Children Services, for which feedback has been very positive; 
 

p) With regard to the issuing of the section 114 report, there are many implications, so 
decisions cannot be rushed and the appropriate investigations need to take place so 
that solutions can be formulated. 

 
The Committee expressed concern that the budget consultation document is too generic 
and needs to be presented with relevance at a local level for local people to respond 
effectively. 
 
The Chair thanked Councillor David Mellen for his attendance and update. 

Page 5



Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 5.01.22 

4 

 
52  Overview and Scrutiny Response to the Budget Consultation 

 
a) Medium-Term Financial Plan Update 
 
Clive Heaphy, Interim Corporate Director for Finance and Resources, was in attendance 
and summarised the report, which included the following highlights: 
 

a) There is a starting budget gap of £28 million for 2022/23 rising to £38.1 million for 
2025/2026, mainly due to external pressures such as inflation and the impact of 
COVID-19; 
 

b) Savings worth £12.2 million have been identified, which include £3.9 million for which 
the Council is currently consulting.  This includes savings from the deletion of 91 
posts, some of which are currently vacant; 

 
c) The Council is looking at options as to how the remaining deficit of £15.7 million for 

2022/23 can be funded, including work on transforming how Council services are 
delivered; 

 
d) The Scrutiny response to the budget consultation will comprise of the views of the 3 

scrutiny committees and will feed into the budget consultation; 
 

e) Central Government has only awarded a one year settlement, but the Council is still 
expected to plan for four years; 
 

f) Council Tax can rise by up to 3%, but in the circumstances, a maximum rise of 2.2% 
is currently proposed; 

 
g) The core spending power calculation for Nottingham is proposed to be increased 

from £287.205 million in 2021/2022 to £307.461 million in 2022/2023 (a 7.1% 
increase), which may appear generous, but the availability from other Central 
Government funding sources has reduced. Nottingham’s 7.1% increase is slightly 
higher than the national average of 6.9%, but is lower than the Core City average of 
7.3%; 
 

h) The proposed settlement means there has been an increase of £11.722m in funding, 
compared to that previously anticipated, but this is still insufficient to close the current 
gaps. 
 

Member’s questions on the Medium Term Financial Plan were responded to by Clive 
Heaphy and Councillor David Mellen as follows: 
 

i) Central Government has predicted within its settlement figures that inflation will rise 
to 3%, but this estimation can be considered optimistic as it is anticipated that, 
although inflation is expected to notably rise and then fall, the rise will be greater than 
3%. Inflation in different areas will differ; 
 

j) Nottingham City Council is not better off than previously, particularly since COVID-
19, but every Authority is feeling the pinch, including reductions in business rates 
income and support grants. The Council will have to fund the gap between the £66.5 

Page 6



Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 5.01.22 

5 

million spent on Covid support and the Central Government COVID-19 support  grant 
of £50.1 million; 
 

k) The past 10 years have seen reduced funding and increased costs, including for 
social care, so the gains are a lot less than the losses. 

 
Members commented: 
 

l) Central Government were not forthcoming to meet the full cost of COVID-19  support 
spending, resulting in a significant shortfall which is a concern, particularly as 
COVID-19 is ongoing; 
 

m) The settlement may appear attractive, but as the City Council has lost £100 million of 
funding in the past 10 years, and therefore spending capacity, it does not 
compensate for this. 

 
b) Overview And Scrutiny Consultation Responses 
 
The Chair of each Scrutiny Committee presented their committee’s consultation response 
on their elements of the budget proposals.  
 
Councillor Carole McCulloch, Chair of the Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee, 
included the following points: 
 

a) Concern is expressed that the consultation is presented in such a way that citizens 
affected by the proposals are unaware of the impact of the proposals and, therefore, 
have not been able to engage in the consultation; 
 

b) Although limited face to face consultation has been available there has been a focus 
on online engagement and response, even though lack of digital access is 
recognised to impact large numbers of the City’s citizens. The consultation was 
presented in such a way that it was not easy to access or respond to the consultation 
for citizens who only have digital access via a smart phone; 

 
c) The information provided within the consultation is very generic and does not 

explicitly enough highlight the elements which will directly impact on citizens at a 
local and, more importantly, personal level. More effort should be made to highlight 
local impact and implications of the proposals; 

 
d) The priority to provide statutory services and meet statutory requirements is of 

course welcomed, however, there is concern that some of the proposals will impact 
both directly and on the mechanisms for delivering the services in the medium and 
long term. Assurance is sought that adequate funding will be available to 
appropriately resource the delivery of statutory services; 

 
e) There is concern about the impact of reducing youth work capacity and the 

Committee has referred the issue of delays in accessing CAMHS to the Health and 
Adult Social Care Scrutiny Committee for consideration; 

 
f) Having questioned the capacity of senior managers to take on the Agency Decision 

Maker role, and whether it would present any risks for the Local Authority and how 

Page 7



Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 5.01.22 

6 

that approach compares with other local authorities, the Committee was sufficiently 
assured by the responses; 

 
g) At its next meeting, the Committee will consider in detail the impact on the Council of 

having to support people with no recourse to public funds, who often have high levels 
of need.  The Committee would like more explicit consideration to be given to 
understanding the costs of this to the Council, and use this to ‘push back’ to Central 
Government on the inadequacy of funding to support people currently with this 
status; 

 
h) There is concern at the loss of purpose-built community focused centres as 

continuing some services will be problematic in a new generic environment; 
 

i) The proposal to split area based grant funding between youth work and employment 
is welcomed, and it suggested that elements of the employment budget is dedicated 
to training youth workers. Improved partnership working with schools, academies and 
the police would also be beneficial to support effective targeting of services. 

 
Councillor Georgia Power, Chair of the Health and Adult Social Care Scrutiny Committee, 
provided the following summary of the Committee’s consultation feedback: 
 

j) The budget proposals continue focus on transformation, rather than cuts to services. 
To date this has been both financially and productively effective with ongoing budget 
underspend for several years; 
 

k) A lot of the proposals are around investing in services to increase pro-active and 
timely assessments and responses which benefit patients, help prevent deterioration 
and therefore the requirement for more intense funding; 

 
l) The Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) have agreed to provide additional funding, 

which is of course welcome; 
 

m) Care must be taken to ensure that the City Council it is not paying for services for 
which other partners are responsible, and that to provide the best efficiency, partner 
communication is effective enough to prevent duplication of services, including within 
in the voluntary sector;  

 
n) Following concern expressed around workforce capacity, the Committee will be 

examining the Workforce Forward Plan at its meeting in January; 
 

o) Nottingham University Hospitals and the CCG are in agreement with the Chair and 
Vice-Chair of the Committee on concerns around discharge and care packages.  
Discharge transformation is proposed, but more detailed scrutiny is underway;  
 

p) Some of the service users affected by the budget proposals have challenges 
engaging in consultation in the usual ways due to additional needs or barriers. The 
Committee has requested a plan to engage with these groups and been advised that 
special one off events will be held with support from staff in the department who have 
these expertise and voluntary sector organisations. The challenge of meeting during 
the pandemic is also acknowledged. 
 

Page 8



Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 5.01.22 

7 

Councillor Anne Peach, Chair of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee, presented the 
Committee’s feedback on the consultation on the proposed budget: 

 
p) The Overview and Scrutiny Committee sought assurance: 

 
i. On financial modelling and whether it is sufficient to take account of inflation rates 

and increasing energy costs; 
 

ii. Whether the Council was resilient enough with regard to cyber security;  
 

iii. Whether reserves are sufficient; 
 
iv. How information obtained as part of the consultation would be used to inform 

decisions about the budget proposals; 
 

v. How the Transformation Programme is being funded and what kind of return was 
expected on the investment to show that the programme represented value for 
money; 

 
vi. That the Council Plan objectives would still be achieved despite the proposed 

budget reductions.    
 

q) The consultation process was not sufficiently accessible to a wide enough proportion 
of the population, especially in deprived communities and communities that will be 
effected most by proposed budget proposals. Members would like to see accessibility 
improved so that everyone’s voice could be heard. The online form was difficult to 
navigate as the proposals are not specific enough; 

 
r) The Committee was concerned that there is still a significant gap at this stage in the 

consultation process and requested additional information about what else 
could/would be done to close the gap; 
 

s) Resident parking permits 
 

i. How accessible the consultation process is and how widely it would be open to 
citizens; 
 

ii. Concern that if the parking permit scheme were to be introduced there would be 
a greater requirement for enforcement and the Committee was not satisfied that 
this had been considered properly.  It queried what modelling had been done and 
what resources had been put in place;  

 
iii. Practical considerations were raised about the inherent fairness and impact of 

the proposals, including in relation to Houses in Multiple Occupations, Carers, 
low income families and wards affected by the Workplace Parking Levy; 

 
iv. Members sought assurance that legal advice had been sought in respect of the 

proposal to scrap existing schemes as there was concern that there would be 
legal challenges; 

 

Page 9



Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 5.01.22 

8 

v. Members asked about whether the scheme represented value for money and 
recommended that a cost benefit analysis of implementation to be carried out. 
 

t) Community Development  
 

i. Members queried what consideration had been given to local Councillors and 
how they would remain engaged; 
 

ii. Members were concerned that the proposals meant that networks and 
community cohesion that has been created would be diminished; 

 
iii. Members were concerned that the proposals would mean that communities who 

felt that they could rely on the Council were having that taken away from them.  
The proposals didn’t take account of the most deprived and vulnerable citizens 
who accessed these services most frequently; 

 
u) Bulky Waste 

 
i. Members asked about the unintended consequences and additional costs that 

would occur as a result of removing the free bulky waste collection, but felt 
some reassurance because of the evidence presented from other cities who 
had introduced a charge; 
 

ii. Members expressed concern that a reduction in waste and community 
protection services would mean and increase in fly-tipping and a lack of 
resource to enforce against offenders would mean an increase in dumped 
waste. Members sought assurance that enforcement would follow where 
evidence of fly-tipping can be proven; 

 
iii.  Members queried whether Council Tax data could be used to establish change 

of residents\tenants and whether landlords could be pursued; 
  

iv. The Committee recommended that hot spot mapping be carried out in areas 
with a high prevalence of fly tipping and these areas be targeted, particular 
emphasis on areas with high levels of HMO’s; 

  
v. The Committee was supportive of the proposal around encouraging citizens to 

reduce, recycle, upcycle.  Members were in agreement that education was a 
key component but, where it was failing, enforcement should follow; 

  
vi. The Committee asked if the Council was dodging an issue by allowing one free 

collection for those on Council Tax Support and queried whether after a period 
of review this would need to be increased, which in turn would have a 
detrimental impact on the costs that are anticipated.  

 
Members at the meeting also suggested that: 
 

v) Further monitoring of Area Based Grants is required to ensure that everything 
promised and funding provided for is delivered; 
 

Page 10



Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 5.01.22 

9 

w) That local residents are ‘up-skilled’ to help deliver services and progress into 
employment. Upskilling any community benefits everyone; 
 

x) A joined-up approach between partners is essential to ensure citizens get the best 
value for money; 
 

y) Whilst the Area Based Grant is a fairly large pot of funding, substantial grants for 
supporting citizens into employment are available from external bodies and so the 
majority of Area Based Grant funds should be directed to support children and young 
people; 

 
z) It’s essential to proactively engage citizens on issues such as the budget and service 

cuts. We need to bring citizens along with us as to why cuts are made as this makes 
a huge difference. 
 

Resolved to delegate authority to the Statutory Scrutiny Officer and the Senior 
Governance Officer to draft the final wording of the response based on the 
discussions at today’s meeting and in consultation with the Chairs of the Overview 
and Scrutiny Committees, and submit the response by the deadline. 
 
 
53  Work Programme 

 
The Committee noted the work programme and that the Library Service Transformation 
Consultation item is postponed so an alternative will be sought from the items suggested at 
the meeting, with the remaining 2 items being scheduled for the March and April meetings: 
 

i. Culture change at Nottingham City Council; 
ii. The Asset Rationalisation Transformation Programme; 
iii. Customer Service Transformation. 

 
 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



Budget 2022/23 Consultation  
Response of the Overview and Scrutiny Committees 

 
7 January 2022 

 
This document outlines the joint response of Nottingham City Council’s three Overview and 
Scrutiny Committees to the 2022/23 Budget Consultation. The three Committees met 
separately during November/ December 2021 to consider the elements of the budget 
proposals relevant to their remits and on 5 January 2022 at a meeting of the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee the following response was agreed incorporating its own comments and 
those of the Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee and the Health and Adult Social 
Care Scrutiny Committee. 
 
The Committees submit the following comments to Executive Board for consideration. 
 
Feedback on the Consultation Process 

a) The committee felt that the consultation process was not sufficiently accessible to a 
wide enough proportion of the population, especially in deprived communities and 
communities that will be affected most by proposed budget proposals. There was 
concern about a lack of awareness of the consultation and it was recommended that the 
Executive considers utilising communication channels that residents engage with on a 
daily basis for future consultations eg working with schools/ academy trusts to use 
school messaging systems/ parent spaces on school websites for proposals that affect 
children and young people.  

b) Concern was expressed about the digital focus of the consultation, though the 
Committees recognised the deteriorating Covid situation throughout the consultation 
period. Councillors felt the online form was difficult to navigate, particularly on a phone, 
and were concerned that citizens may not have access to the devices or data required 
to participate in the consultation. They felt that this especially affected more deprived 
areas who may be more greatly affected by some of the proposals eg closure of 
Children’s Centres. 

c) It was felt that the information provided in the consultation is too generic, with very little 
information about the nature of what is being proposed and the impact it will have on 
service provision and individual people/ wards.  This makes it very difficult for citizens to 
meaningfully engage with. 

d) The Committee emphasised the need for consultation with groups using adult social 
care to be tailored to their needs eg people with learning disabilities or elderly people 
who may not have access to internet. The Committee recommended working with 
people/groups (especially in the voluntary sector) who have experience with this to 
support consultation exercises.  
 

Comments in relation to specific savings proposals 
 
Resident parking permits  

e) The committee were concerned that if the parking permit scheme were to be introduced 
there would be a greater requirement for enforcement and reiterated their view that this 
element and wider cost/ benefit analysis needed to be fully considered. Consideration 
should also be given to the potential for any challenge to the scheme. 

 
Community Development  

f) Councillor queried how local Councillors would remain engaged in the new 
arrangements. 

Page 13



g) Concern was expressed that the proposals risked diminishing the networks and 
community cohesion that has been created and that the proposals didn’t take account 
of our most deprived and vulnerable citizens who accessed these services most 
frequently.  

 
Bulky Waste 

h) Councillors expressed concern that a reduction in waste and community protection 
services could result in an increase in fly-tipping and a lack of enforcement against 
offenders.  

i) The Committee recommended that hot spot mapping be carried out in areas with a high 
prevalence of fly tipping and these areas be targeted with particular emphasis on areas 
with high levels of HMOs. 

j) The Committee were supportive of the proposal around encouraging citizens to reduce, 
recycle, upcycle.  They were in agreement that education was a key component but 
where it was failing enforcement should follow.  

 
Children’s Integrated Services 

k) The Committee supports the prioritisation of statutory services and meeting statutory 
responsibilities, however is very concerned that the proposals relating to Children’s 
Integrated Services present a very real risk to the Council’s ability to do this in the 
medium – longer term.  The Council is already struggling to meet demand, in terms of 
numbers and complexity, for Children in Care (as evidenced by the in-year pressures 
and forecast overspend in this area).  Firstly, the Committee would like assurance that 
statutory responsibilities and the delivery of statutory services are adequately funded for 
the four years of the MTFP.  The Committee would like assurance that the Council fully 
understands the pressures in relation to Children’s Integrated Services (the forecast 
variance has been so volatile during 2021/22 that it is difficult to have full confidence in 
the ability to assess pressures and forecast accurately) and that these are appropriately 
resourced going forward to avoid an impact both on the ability to deliver statutory 
responsibilities and services and on the Council’s overall financial stability in the future.  
Secondly, the Committee considers that, based on the information presented to it in a 
range of different meetings, reducing early intervention is likely to further increase 
demand for statutory services, which the Council is already struggling to meet at current 
levels.  While the Committee recognises the potential for transformation to address this, 
this work is far from being at a stage that provides the Committee with reassurance on 
that.   

 
Youth and Play Services 

l) The Committee has considered a range of evidence about the interplay between 
permanent exclusion from school and support from play and youth services for young 
people on the edge of being excluded, or who have been excluded from school. 
Reducing school exclusion is a priority area within the Strategic Council Plan (SCP) 
because of the impact that it has on outcomes for a young person who is excluded – 
reducing support for young people on the edge of exclusion does not support this aim 
within the SCP.  The Committee has heard from leaders of local Academy Trusts about 
delays in access to CAMHS and the lack of mental health support in schools.  Through 
their relationships with vulnerable young people, youth workers play a role in filling this 
gap.  The Committee is concerned about the impact of reducing youth work capacity 
and has referred the issue of delays in accessing CAMHS to the Health and Adult 
Social Care Scrutiny Committee for consideration.  

 
Agency Decision Maker Role 

Page 14



m) The Committee asked about the capacity of senior managers to take on the Agency 
Decision Maker role, and whether it would present any risks for the local authority and 
how that approach compares with other local authorities.  The Committee was 
sufficiently assured on these issues. 

 
Support for those with no recourse to Public Funds 

n) The Committee is concerned about the impact on the Council’s ability to deliver 
statutory services and responsibilities as a result of having to support people with no 
recourse to public funds, who often have high levels of need.  The Committee would like 
more explicit consideration to be given to understanding the costs of this to the Council, 
and use this to ‘push back’ to Government on the inadequacy of funding to support 
people currently with this status.  The Committee will be looking at this issue in more 
detail at its meeting in January. 
 

Children’s Centres/ Youth and Play Services – Estate Considerations 
o) While it may not currently be possible to provide services, such as those provided in 

children’s centres or play services, the Committee is concerned that once the buildings 
in which they have been/ are currently being provided in (which in some cases are 
purpose-designed) have been sold it will make it very difficult to ever recommence 
delivery of similar community-based services should circumstances allow. 

 
Area Based Grant 

p) The Committee supports improved partnership working and work to make better use of 
Area Based Grant to deliver what is required and to the appropriate standard and, 
indeed, this was an area that the Committee made a recommendation to the Portfolio 
Holder for Children and Young People about earlier this year.  The Committee 
understands that there is a proposal for Area Based Grant to be split equally between 
youth services and employment.  It is suggested that consideration could be given to 
some of the employment and training portion being used for training youth workers.  
The Committee has previously recommended working more closely with partners, such 
as schools and the Police, to share intelligence and inform decisions about targeting 
services. 

 
Adult Care Package Assessments 

q) In relation to care packages it is important that the Service has sufficient capacity to 
assess the level of need upon discharge from hospital and to regularly review need and 
ensure an appropriate level of care is in place.  

 
Workforce Capacity in Adult Social Care 

r) Concerns were raised about workforce capacity. The workforce forward plan will be 
considered by the Health and Adult Social Care Scrutiny Committee in January.  

 
Partnership Working 

s) It was suggested that there are opportunities for greater levels of partnership working 
with partners beyond those commissioning and delivering health services, for example 
housing providers.  

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
9 February 2022 

 
Together for Nottingham Plan – Progress update by the Leader 
 
Report of the Head of Legal and Governance 
 
1 Purpose 
 
1.1 To consider a verbal update from the Leader on progress made on the 

priorities in the Together for Nottingham Plan. 
 
2 Action required 
 
2.1 The Committee is asked to  
 

a) consider the information provided and use it to inform questioning 
and discussion 
 

b) make recommendations if appropriate 
 

c) make any necessary amendments to the work programme as a 
result of the information provided. 
 

3 Background information 
 

3.1 At its meeting on 9 June the Committee resolved to invite the Leader to 
attend each Overview and Scrutiny Committee meeting for 
approximately 15 minutes to provide a very brief update on key issues in 
relation to improvement and recovery, to aid work programme planning. 
These updates have been scheduled into the work programme in line 
with the Leader’s availability.  
 

3.2 The Leader will present information on the Council’s current progress in 
relation to priorities in the Together for Nottingham Plan to support the 
Committee to identify appropriate items for scrutiny at future meetings, in 
addition to items already agreed.  

 
3.3 Following questioning and discussion, the Committee should use the 

information acquired in its discussions under the Work Programme item 
of the agenda. 

 
4 List of attached information 
 
4.1 None 
 
5 Background papers, other than published works or those 

disclosing exempt or confidential information 
 
5.1 None 

Page 17

Agenda Item 4



 

6 Published documents referred to in compiling this report 
 
6.1 Reports to and discussion at Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

meetings since June 2021. 
 
6.2 Together for Nottingham Plan. 
 
7 Wards affected 
 
7.1 All 
 
8 Contact information 
 
8.1 Laura Wilson  
 Senior Governance Officer  
 0115 8764301  
 laura.wilson@nottinghamcity.gov.uk 

Page 18

mailto:laura.wilson@nottinghamcity.gov.uk


 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
9 February 2022 

 
Culture Change at Nottingham City Council 
 
Report of the Head of Legal and Governance 
 
 
1 Purpose 
 
1.1 To consider the effectiveness of the work being undertaken to deliver 

positive lasting cultural and behavioural change in the organisation as 
part of the recovery and improvement work for the Together for 
Nottingham Plan. 

 
2 Action required 
 
2.1 The Committee is asked to 
 

(a)  consider the information provided and use it to inform questioning 
 and discussion 
 
(b)  make recommendations if appropriate 
 
(c) identify any potential items for future scrutiny. 

 
3 Background information 

 
3.1 The Together for Nottingham Plan was adopted by the Council in 

January 2021, and refreshed at Council in January 2022, to confirm and 
provide assurance to the Government that Nottingham’s response to the 
Non-Statutory Review (NSR) of the Council is positive and being 
undertaken at pace, building on work already underway in response to 
the Public Interest Report on the Council’s governance of Robin Hood 
Energy (PIR) published in August 2020. 

 
3.2 The Plan is broken down into 8 workstreams, with Organisation and 

Culture being one. The workstream will establish clear goals at a top 
level and an effective performance management framework with suitable 
development opportunities for all. 

 
3.3 As the Committee is focussing on the recovery and improvement of the 
 Council, members of the Committee have expressed particular interest in 
 scrutinising the effectiveness of the work being undertaken to deliver 

positive lasting cultural and behavioural change in the organisation. 
 
3.4 The relevant colleagues, Portfolio Holder, and Theme Leads have been 

invited to the meeting to provide a presentation on the work undertaken 
so far, followed by questioning and discussion. 

 

Page 19

Agenda Item 5



 

3.5 A report and supporting appendices are attached for consideration. 
 
4 List of attached information 
 
4.1 Report on Culture Change (Theme 6) 
 
4.2 Appendix 1: Culture Mapping Findings (April 2021) 
 
4.3 Appendix 2: Leading & Managing Together Brochure (Nov 2021) 
 
4.4 Appendix 3: Theme 6 Progress Report (December 2021) 
 
5 Background papers, other than published works or those 

disclosing exempt or confidential information 
 
5.1 None. 
 
6 Published documents referred to in compiling this report 
 
6.1 Together for Nottingham Plan. 
 
7 Wards affected 
 
7.1 All. 
 
8 Contact information 
 
8.1 Laura Wilson 
 Senior Governance Officer 
 0115 8764301 
 laura.wilson@nottinghamcity.gov.uk  

Page 20

mailto:laura.wilson@nottinghamcity.gov.uk


Author: Gareth Sayers 
v1.0 Final 

 
Report for Overview and Scrutiny Committee – 9 February 2022 
 
Delivering Culture Change – Recovering & Improvement (Theme 6) 
 
 
1. Purpose: 
 

1.1. This report details the work undertaken to date in relation to theme 6 of our Recovery 
and Improvement Plan, ‘Together for Nottingham’ and how this is driving culture 
change at Nottingham City Council.  

 
 

2. Theme 6 Objectives: 

 
2.1 The Key Objectives for Theme 6 listed in the Together for Nottingham Plan are: 
 

 Establish a clear set of organisational objectives and the mechanisms to hold the Chief 

Executive to account, and through the Chief Executive to hold senior officers to 

account for their delivery. 

 Ensuring that these objectives can be embedded within the activities of the 

organisation as a whole through clear and effective lines of accountability. 

 Provide officers with clarity of focus and easily understood remits which deliver for the 

citizens of Nottingham. 

 Create a sharper focus on performance for everyone in the Council and set clear 

expectations for colleagues. 

 Celebrate and build on the local knowledge and passion of councillors in advocating 

for their communities as part of a culture that champions Nottingham and its people. 

 Set a new standard for personal responsibility and behaviour, and recast the cultural 

norms of the whole organisation including greater clarity on councillor and officer roles 

and responsibilities.  

 

2.2 The Key Deliverables to help drive cultural change include: 

 

 Top tier officer restructure. 

 CEX performance appraisal procedure. 

 New approach to Individual Performance Reviews 

 Officer Development Programme and specific Accelerated Development Programme. 

 Recruitment of a diverse group of ‘Change Accelerators’ and a collaborative 

programme with Nottingham Trent University.  

 Councillor Development Programme. 

 

Page 21



Author: Gareth Sayers 
v1.0 Final 

 
3. Background: 
 
3.1 The Report in the Public Interest (PIR) into the City Council’s governance of Robin 

Hood Energy was published on the 11th of August 2020 and revealed significant 
failures in the Council’s governance of RHE, including a need to improve the council’s 
strategic financial management, overall corporate governance and organisational 
culture. 
 

3.2 An agreement with the then Ministry for Housing Communities and Local Government 
(MHCLG) was subsequently reached in October 2020 for a rapid Non-Statutory 
Review (NSR) to be undertaken, and this was led by Max Caller CBE. The NSR 
highlighted serious and significant areas of concern for the Council, and elected 
members and senior officers were clear that the Council could not continue as it had 
in the past, fully accepting the recommendations in the NSR.  
 

3.3 The Council’s Recovery and Improvement Plan was NCC’s response to these findings 
and was put together at pace to demonstrate the organisation’s commitment to change 
and to reassure MHCLG, now Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities 
(DLUHC) that the identified issues would be addressed.   
 

3.4 Theme 6 of the Council’s Recovery and Improvement Plan, recently re-branded as 
‘Together for Nottingham’, covers the need for culture change. It sets out the desire to 
‘assess and reset the cultural norms and expectations in Nottingham’. A critical 
component to achieving this aim is the design and delivery of a ‘comprehensive 
workforce development and cultural change programme’. 
 

3.5 The aim of this programme is to deliver positive lasting cultural and behavioural change 
in the organisation, taking full account of the Council’s absolute commitment to 
equality, diversity and inclusion, and to remedy the long standing cultural issues 
identified by the PIR and the NSR of the council. 
 

3.6 Delivery of any change programme will succeed only where the culture of the 
organisation supports it. The plan includes a number of organisational, structural and 
developmental objectives that aim to create the conditions in which a positive culture 
can thrive, however, cultural change is ultimately about the choices and behaviours of 
individuals.  
 

3.7 For the Recovery and Improvement Plan to be successful, we recognise that the wider 
culture at Nottingham City Council needs to change and that behaviour change 
underpins any successful transformation.  While a new constitution can be written and 
adopted, plans can be created, process automated and systems put in place, the 
people at the heart of those changes will determine if real change is embedded and 
sustained. 
 

3.8 Progress towards all theme 6 objectives has been made and several of the key 
deliverables have either been delivered or are in progress. However, it is accepted that 
cultural change takes time and there is still lots to do which will take activity relating to 
theme 6 well into 2023.     
 

 
 
 

Page 22



Author: Gareth Sayers 
v1.0 Final 

 
4. Progress to date: 
 
Mapping the existing organisational culture. 
 
4.1 Before any work to shift and improve the organisational culture could take place, it was 

appropriate to clearly identify what the existing culture was. It is important to note that 
there is no right or wrong organisational culture, but that negative elements can 
sometimes outweigh the positives and a balance is required.  
 

4.2 Between January and March 2021 an extensive culture mapping exercise took place. 
This involved the use of an existing valid and reliable questionnaire which was used 
with senior leadership and then the wider workforce, plus a series of focus groups with 
colleagues from across the organisation at various levels.  
 

4.3 The mapping identified that NCC, based on the Goffee and Jones model (see culture 
mapping findings), has a communal / networked culture with many positives to 
harness, but with some negatives to mitigate against. It also identified different 
perceptions of our culture, how things get done, between senior leaders and the wider 
workforce.  
 

4.4 While a communal culture can mean our workforce is very values driven, putting 
citizens at the heart of what we do came over strongly, it can also mean that colleagues 
become ‘believers’ and do not question how things are done, or that ‘belief’ is confused 
with performance. While a networked culture means colleagues care for each other 
and like each other, it can also result in a lack of challenge, the creation of cliques and 
of talk without action.  
 
The full culture mapping findings are attached – Appendix 1 
     

 

Top tier officer restructure. 

 

4.5 By 1 April 2021 a new top tier officer structure was consulted upon and in place. The 

council retained four departments, renamed Directorates as follows: 

 Finance and Resources  

 Growth and City Development 

 People’s Services 

 Resident Services 
 

4.6 Recruitment to vacant Corporate Director posts took place and by September 2021 

all four new positions were filled and a new CLT structure/team is now in place. 

4.7 It was always proposed that more reorganisation would follow within each Directorate 

and be led by the relevant Corporate Director. In order to aid this process and ensure 

that the correct structures are put in a place, a wide ranging piece of work with the 

Local Government Association (LGA) is ongoing.  

4.8 The work uses the Decision Making Accountability (DMA) method and involves in 

depth consultation with the workforce to identify what works well and what does not.  

 
Page 23



Author: Gareth Sayers 
v1.0 Final 

 

A total of 14 divisional areas out of 17 have been reviewed and a final report to bring 

together all the findings and make recommendations is due by end of February 2022. 

 

CEX performance appraisal procedure. 

 

4.9 In order to lead by example and ensure that organisational and individual 

performance is well managed at NCC, the Chief Executive has ensured that he has a 

robust appraisal procedure in place that follows the standard process agreed by the 

National Joint Council for Chief Officers. This involves support from an external 

partner and regular dialogue about objectives and behaviours with the Leader of the 

council.  

4.10 Objectives set for the CEX clearly align with the revised Strategic Council Plan and 

appropriate objectives have been cascaded down to Corporate Directors.  

 

New approach to Individual Performance Reviews 

 

4.11 Individual Performance Reviews are a critical element in ensuring that all employees 
are working towards meaningful organisational objectives and top level goals. They 
are essential in setting out what an employee is expected to achieve (objectives) and 
how to achieve them (behaviours and competencies). The right support and 
development in order to achieve the objectives set should also be explored and offered 
as appropriate.  
 

4.12 Individual objectives should link clearly into team plans, service plans and ultimately 
into the Strategic Council Plan and work has been undertaken to ensure the new 
approach aligns to the new Performance Management Framework. A revised 
approach to service planning has been put in place which ensures that this clear thread 
is created.  
 

4.13 It was found through our culture mapping activity that performance appraisals were not 
undertaken consistently throughout the organisation or consistently well. Colleagues 
felt that their appraisals were tokenistic and a ‘tick box’ exercise. This supports the 
findings of the Non-Statutory Review of the council which highlighted weaknesses in 
the council’s approach to performance management. 
 

4.14 In order to improve the quantity and quality of Individual Performance Reviews (IPR), 
improve individual and ultimately organisational performance, a new approach has 
been designed which will be implemented ‘top down’ from the Chief Executive through 
the tiers of the organisation. 
 

4.15 The new approach focuses on performance and development through good quality, 
regular conversations, with clear and agreed objectives. The approach sets out the 
need to ‘check-in’ every 4-6 weeks to monitor performance rather than waiting until 
mid-year or end of year conversations to do so. This means that issues, risks and 
under performance can be addressed with appropriate intervention at a much earlier 
stage. 

 
Page 24



Author: Gareth Sayers 
v1.0 Final 

4.16 The new approach has been rolled out to SLMG colleagues in the first instance and 

has been used throughout the 2021/22 cycle. It will be rolled out to all colleagues 

from 1 April 2022, and includes a set of new behavioural expectations under four 

themes: 

 Leading People 

 Equality, Diversity and Inclusion 

 Collaboration 

 Change and Innovation  

 

Support, guidance and a range of learning interventions have been designed to help 

embed the new approach and new behaviours. Sample testing with SLMG 

colleagues is currently underway to explore how it is working and if it is contributing 

towards behaviour change. In addition, the new Oracle system allows IPR objectives 

and conversations to be recorded accurately, so moving forward, reporting on IPR 

will be much easier and insightful. 

 

Officer Development Programme and specific Accelerated Development Programme. 

 

4.17 To harness the positive aspects of our culture, mitigate against the negatives and to 

drive change and improvement, an extensive development offer has been designed 

and is currently being delivered. This includes: 

 

   Leading and Managing Together programme. For c.800 leader/managers 

across the organisation. It sets out a leaders responsibilities, what is expected 

of them and how they are expected to behave. The programme launched in 

November and should take up to 9 months to complete. It is designed to help 

embed other significant changes as part of our improvement such as our New 

Constitution.   

 

The brochure for the programme is attached with this report – Appendix 2 

 

   Accelerated Development Programme. A specific programme for colleagues 

from underrepresented groups and with protected characteristics. This 

programme will help address some of the negative elements of our culture 

with regard to equalities and help meet our EDI ambitions. It aims to increase 

representation at all levels in the Council through personal development.  

  

4.18 Learning has been designed to help embed the new approach to IPR and our new 

behavioural expectations. Opportunities for colleague development will commence in 

the new financial year following the initial emphasis on leadership development. 

 

4.19 There has been a particular focus on equality, diversity and inclusion when designing 

new behavioural expectations and the development programmes to embed change. 

This responds to issues raised in the NSR and our own inclusion ambitions. A review 

of our practices, policies and procedures is underway and will drive further 

improvements into 2022/23.  
Page 25



Author: Gareth Sayers 
v1.0 Final 

 

Recruitment of a diverse group of ‘Change Accelerators’ and a collaborative 

programme with Nottingham Trent University. 

 

4.20 In addition to our extensive in-house development offer, two further opportunities 

have been scoped and co-designed in order to positively impact culture change:  

 

 Change Academy. In order to support organisational transformation, a change 

academy has been created and up to 20 ‘change agents’ will initially be recruited to 

support the transformation programme. The Change Agents will be recruited based 

on attitude and behaviours and our transformation partners PwC will provide formal 

training in business analysis and project management. Once trained, the colleagues 

will be seconded over to the programme to support services deliver change. In 

addition, many colleagues expressed an interest in supporting change from within 

their existing posts/teams – acting as local change champions.      

 

 Transformational Leadership. In partnership with Nottingham Trent University, a 

programme has been designed to recruit, support and train a number of colleagues 

become future ‘transformational leaders.’ It will explore system wide leadership and 

include participants from partner organisations. 

 

4.21 With an increased focus on learning and development, change should follow and 

new ways of working should be embedded and sustained.     

 

Councillor Development Programme. 

4.22 Development for Nottingham City Councillors has been increasing and improving 

since May 2019. There has been a steady increase in councillor development activity 

and engagement with learning. As part of the PIR and NSR this has increased 

further. A total of 129 development interventions were recorded in 2020/21.  

  

4.23 Formal learning has been provided to our Company Directors through the Institute of 

Directors (IoD) and sessions with Executive Councillors have been 

facilitated/delivered on our New Constitution and the new Councillor-Officer 

Protocols. This includes a facilitated session by the LGA.  

 

4.24 In 2021 a questionnaire to identify development needs was conducted with a 63% 

responses rate. Using the LGA Political Skills Framework, the 2021/22 development 

programme has been shaped around the needs identified by councillors themselves 

which should in turn increase take up.   

 

5. Next Steps 

 

5.1 Additional resource and capacity has been approved to both accelerate the pace of 

change and ensure that change and learning is embedded into practice. Recruitment 

is in progress and resource expected to be in place within the next few weeks.  

 
Page 26



Author: Gareth Sayers 
v1.0 Final 

 

5.2 Development activity for both councillors and officers will now continue well into 

2022/23. This will be evaluated by programme and by collective impact. 

 

5.3 The adoption of the new approach to IPR will be monitored and measured with the 

first indications of how well it has landed by report in March/April 2023.  

 

5.4 Recommendations from the DMA exercise will be made in February 2022 and 

decisions on future organisational design implemented in 2022/23.   

 

5.5 In light of the councils new Transformation Programme, a single plan that links 

programme delivery, people and cultural change activity across NCC will be required. 

This plan will be developed between the Transformation Office and Culture Change 

work-streams as part of the refresh of the Recovery and Improvement Plan. This 

work is currently being scoped in terms of the resource required to do it and the 

timescale in which it can be done.   

 

5.6      Further culture mapping and/or colleague feedback should be undertaken and 

gathered towards the end of 2022/23 in order to measure progress against the 

original objectives in the plan, but also against the original culture mapping findings. 

    
 
 
 
 
 
Appendix 
 
1. Culture Mapping Findings - April 2021 
 
2. Leading and Managing Together Brochure November - 2021 
 
3. Theme 6 Monthly Progress Report – December 2021  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

- End   - Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank



Theme 6: Organisation & Culture

Culture Mapping Findings

Richard Henderson

April 2021

P
age 29



Purpose of 

Culture Mapping 

P
age 30



Purpose

 This document provides background information to allow informed discussion and decision 

making regarding the culture change element of the Recovery and Improvement Plan.

 Culture change, and associated behaviour changes, are critical in enabling the improvement 

journey NCC is undertaking.

 In order to be satisfied that we fully understand the current prevailing culture at NCC a culture 

mapping exercise took place between January 2021 and March 2021, the findings of which are 

detailed in this summary report. 

 The Non Statutory Review highlights that changes to structures and performance management 

arrangements will not in of themselves lead to organisation change without the right culture 

and individual behaviours. For this reason the Recovery & Improvement Plan emphasises the 

delivery of a far reaching and meaningful cultural transformation programme, supported by the 

Local Government Association.

“This will clearly articulate both the current prevailing culture and the desired culture, as 

well as providing sharp focus to the individual behaviours and competencies that need to 

change or be developed.”

P
age 31



Approach

P
age 32



Overall Methodology  

It is recognised that an organisation’s culture is a complex picture particularly in an 

organisation the size of NCC. It is also acknowledged that an organisation’s 

prevailing culture is neither ‘right or wrong’ but will have positive elements and less 

positive elements which may need to be mitigated against. In addition, sub-

cultures in different parts of the organisation can exist. 

For this reason the culture mapping activity utilised a number of different methods 

and approaches to gain a fully rounded insight into our current position, including:

 Desk top review of existing evidence

 Culture Mapping Survey - Councillors, Senior Leaders, Workforce 

 Focus Groups – Trade Unions, Networks, Mixed Workforce Groups 

 Discussions and anecdotal evidence from across the organisation 

To ensure the mapping exercise was robust and valid, a range of methodologies 

and models were used for reliability and credibility, including:

 Rob Goffee and Gareth Jones: ‘The Character of a Corporation’ 

 Gerry Johnson and Kevan Scholes: ‘The Culture Web’

 Edgar Schein: ‘Model of Organisational Culture’         

Acknowledging an 

organisational culture has 

many layers.

Edgar Schein (1985)

P
age 33



Findings

P
age 34



Summary of findings

 Councillors and SLMG colleagues perceive NCC to have a ‘Communal’ culture with high 

‘Networked’ elements.

 Colleagues (the wider workforce) did not identify a dominate culture, however ‘Networked’ 

scored highly when the positive and negative elements were combined. 

 Much evidence pointed to an organisation and workforce committed to public service and 

“making a difference.” There is high value placed on being part of an organisation that is 

‘values’ driven.

 Evidence suggests power, influence and engagement between colleagues and leadership 

were out of balance. The perception of ‘how things get done’ differed between senior 

leadership and colleagues.

 All acknowledged a recent lack of focus on performance management (organisation and 

individuals) 

P
age 35



What does this mean?

 Our organisational culture has many positives to harness and some negatives to 

mitigate against. 

Networked

Positives:

People know and like each other. Can be like a family to its people.

• Informality and flexibility

• Rapid exchange of information

• High trust and willingness to help

• No hidden agendas

• Fun, laughter

• Loyalty, caring, empathy, relaxed

Negatives:

Too much focus on friendships/relationships leading to a lack of 

challenge and creation of political cliques.

• Gossip and rumour. Negative politics.

• Endless debate, long meetings with little action

• Manipulation of communication, e.g. Copying emails

• Risk averse. Keep your head down.

• Change roles. Minimise performance measurement. 

• Manage upwards more than manage outcomes

Communal

Positives: 

Values both relationships and performance. 

Feeling of belonging with a strong focus on goal achievement. 

• Passionate, committed, high energy.

• Creative, loyal, stimulating.

• Able to sustain teams over long periods.

• Equitable, fair and just.

• Close tie between espoused values and embedded practices

Negatives:

Often life consuming. Charismatic leaders frequently look to create 

loyalty rather than compliance, resulting in a work climate of 

‘believers’.

• Sense of invulnerability.

• Inability to strengths of peer organisations and competitors.

• No leadership development, only disciples.

• Confuse belief with performance, carrying underperformers.

• Unwilling to change.

• Reliance on Figureheads. 

P
age 36



Focus Group Evidence –

What do you enjoy or value about working for the Council?

Impact Relationships Inspiration

Citizen contact, helping, assisting, working with 

colleagues in a team. 

Sense of reward, doing your bit for the citizens / 

society and are contributing.

Challenge, variety of work. Ability to affect 

change in young children’s life and help set 

them up in the right way.

See first hand impact and change we can have 

on communities and benefits we provide.

As a problem solver I want to make a difference.

I stayed in authority, stuck around because of 

values. Improving citizen’s quality of life, 

resolving issues in workplace, supporting 

citizens and colleagues. 

Working relationship with others across council 

– dedicated passionate wonderful people, 

helpful towards each other

Employer of the city I live in – important, 

valuable work in the city, looking after the most 

vulnerable, regeneration

People work with, feels like a family. So much 

knowledge, great skillsets and richness of 

people

Colleagues work with, some have become close 

friends. Trust, emotional support keeps me 

going.

Making a difference, enable and support people 

to do their jobs and support citizens, enable 

services, I love the people that I work with.

Reach into the communities is totally different 

after being in private sector. It is inspiring to be 

part of such a large organisation and the reach 

we can have

Believing in what we do for people. People I  

work with, and as an organisation making a 

difference to the people. 

Seeing impact of work on citizens, frontline 

workers and even in background functions. 

Managing bids that bring money in for council 

work keeps me going.

Value the impact we can have on lives, and in 

making the city a greener one.

Public service values. Helping citizens and 

communities. Giving people something to be 

proud of in the city.

P
age 37



Positives to harness

 We have a loyal workforce, committed to meeting 

the needs of our citizens.

 Talking about ‘helping people’ motivates our 

workforce.

 We have passion and enthusiasm to harness. 

 Our workforce is ready to deliver to make a 

difference.

 We need to build on our positive communal aspects.

 We need to build on the commitment to the council 

and our sense of localism.

 We need to celebrate our successes and things we 

do well. Retain our ambition. 

 We need to be the council the city needs.

Citizen 
Focused

Loyal

Committed

Passionate

Enthusiastic

Past and 
present 

Successes

Values 
Driven

P
age 38



Some challenges to address 

 We need to focus on delivering our outcomes in a values driven way. 

 We are too paternalistic – we need to start doing ‘with’ and not for.

 We need some focus on the values of being efficient and effective - of providing 

value for money. We need to be sustainable. 

 We need to improve the conversations we are having - managers and colleagues. 

 Good management (doing the right things) is not consistently valued in all areas.

 We need to improve individual performance reviews – people mostly view them 

negatively.

 The challenges of returning to offices and hybrid working needs to support our 

change.

 We need to reach the ‘frontline’ with our communications and have a narrative that 

connects with the frontline. 

P
age 39



What do we need to do more of

Leaders 

role modelling 

and doing the 

right things

Not to be 

afraid of 

change

Show people 

they can make 

a difference 

(and how)

Leaders and 

colleagues 

working 

together

A narrative that 

works for 

all areas of the 

organisation 

Invest in and 

develop our 

people

Demonstrate we 

are doing the 

right things for 

our citizens

A narrative on 

working with 

citizens

Make use of

recovery and 

returning to 

workplaces

Visible, 

engaging 

leadership at all 

levels

Significant 

change and 

we all have a 

role to play

P
age 40



Methodology 

P
age 41



Methodology - Culture Mapping

Using the work of Rob Goffee and Gareth Jones, a valid and reliable 

questionnaire was adopted to assess how NCC’s culture maps out on 

a matrix of Sociability and Solidarity, how the organisation prioritises 

relationships or business outcomes.

This included:

 23 question survey with Councillors and Senior Leaders (SLMG)

 24 question survey with wider workforce

Providing scores to indicate where the prevailing culture sits within the 

sociability-solidarity matrix, and to identify the positive and negative 

elements of each characteristic. 

c.75
Responses 

from Cllrs & 

Senior 

Leaders

c.1300
Responses 

from wider 

workforce

c.24%
Response 

Rate

P
age 42

https://www.google.com/url?sa=i&url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.conversationagent.com%2F2016%2F02%2Fthe-culture-we-create.html&psig=AOvVaw2hHJQ_s8ChRCihJ-z7-gKq&ust=1612546449013000&source=images&cd=vfe&ved=0CAIQjRxqFwoTCOiJvuTh0O4CFQAAAAAdAAAAABAa


Methodology - Focus Groups 

Johnson and Scholes (1992)

A series of focus groups were undertaken for a deeper 

analysis and understanding of the current organisational 

culture and the views of the workforce. 

x7 Focus Groups took place using the six elements of the 

‘Culture Web’ to drive the conversation and discussion, 

with:

 Trade Union colleagues x1 group

 Employee Network Chairs/Members x1 group

 Cross representational workforce groups x5 

x7
Focus 

Groups

x70
Attendees

P
age 43



Methodology - Desk Top Review  

The desktop review of existing information and evidence that provides insight into NCC’s 

current organisational culture included (not exhaustive):

 Public Interest Report into Robin Hood Energy (2020)

 Non Statutory Review conducted by Max Caller (2020) 

 Workforce Survey - Covid Impact (2020)

 Workforce Survey & Focus Groups – Homeworking Experience (2020)

 Covid Lessons Learned exercise (2020) 

 Sustainable Future – early diagnostic sessions (2019) 

 Unlocking Loxley – Smarter Working evaluation (2019) 

 EDI Focus Groups (2019)

 Colleague Opinion Survey (2018)

 Peer Challenge Report (2017)

Observations, comments and information was extracted from the documents and matched 

against the positive and negative elements of the ‘Goffee and Jones’ matrix.   

P
age 44



End 

P
age 45



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Leading &
Managing
Together

Our Behaviours

The Role of a Leader/Manager 

Learning & Development

Introducing Leading & Managing
Together

Page 47



Introducing Leading & Managing
Together

The programme is focused around our new Leadership Framework, with behaviours developed with you, and has
been designed to unlock the potential of the whole workforce, starting with you as key enablers and role models
for others.

The Leadership Framework is complemented by our new approach to Individual Performance Reviews which will
support and embed our behavioural expectations and ensure that performance is managed and colleagues
receive the support and direction to meet their responsibilities, something that colleagues across the organisation
have asked for.

The Leading and Managing Together programme is an expected deliverable in our Recovery and Improvement
Plan and will help ensure we have capable people, doing the right things, in the right way, helping us to overcome
the challenges we face and transform for the future. 

I have no hesitation in requesting that all leaders/managers complete this programme, to encourage learning and
help play your role in creating the inclusive, sustainable, innovative and collaborative council our citizens deserve."

Mel Barrett, Chief Executive 

What's in it for me?
NCC needs agile leaders who can lead effectively through ongoing change, who can drive 
performance and cultivate a culture of engagement and accountability.  High performing
leaders, lead high performing teams, who deliver strong organisational performance for the 
benefit of citizens. 

Our Leading and Managing Together programme offers a range of learning and development enabling you to
engage the colleagues you’re responsible for in three key areas, Leading Well, Performing Well and Delivering
Well. The programme has a suite of core learning, delivered via a blended approach to meet core learning styles
and will equip you to become a better leader/manager now and for the future. 

You will:
• Further develop your leadership and management knowledge, skills and experience 
• Have an opportunity to learn and grow as a leader/manager in a safe space 
• Explore a range of leadership and management theories and models to support you in your role
• Share your own and hear others experiences of leading and managing
• Consider best practice and create time and space for you to collaborate and problem solve with peers.    

As with all learning programmes, the more you put in, the greater the returns. So engage, enjoy and achieve!

All elements of the programme are expected to be completed by end of October 2022.  

"As Leaders we are all required to create and translate the vision for our council 
and for our city, for shaping strategies and for delivering on our improvement ambitions.
Our management focus includes devising plans to achieve our desired outcomes, 
monitoring and reporting on performance, and intervening when this is not where it 
should be. We need to deliver on what we promise and support others to deliver on theirs.   

Leading and Managing Together is our new development programme which will help define 
your responsibilities; it sets out how we expect our leaders to behave and what we expect 
them to do, while providing the support and development to enable you to deliver on our plans.

Page 48



Create the conditions for inclusion & equality.
Celebrate difference & embrace diversity.

 

Equality, Diversity & Inclusion

Drive change through effective 
challenge & support. 

Strive to innovate & be creative in all you do.
 

Change & Innovation

Lead others well to drive performance.
Be accountable and lead by example.

Leading People

Our Behaviours

Co-design & co-deliver services.
Cascade information & communicate well.

 

Collaboration

Behavioural Expectations

The way we behave at work underpins the culture we create, this is why we
have introduced our behavioural expectations, which we all need to follow,
so we can deliver the best for local people, our colleagues and our Council.

intranet.nottinghamcity.gov.uk/ourbehaviours

Visit the Behaviour Expectations Intranet page for full details

All colleagues should create, translate and contribute to the council's vision and strategy.

Page 49

http://intranet.nottinghamcity.gov.uk/leading-and-managing-together/performing-well/behavioural-expectations/
http://intranet.nottinghamcity.gov.uk/leading-and-managing-together/performing-well/behavioural-expectations/


The role of a leader/manager sets out what we expect you to do. This is about putting the foundations and structure 
in place to lead and manage well, to do things right. 

You should take some time to review the statements and evaluate yourself against each one. Good leaders engage in
continuous learning and development to refresh their skills. Please reflect on your scores and consider if any
development additional to the essential learning is required, a refocus of priorities, or how you spend your time,
especially where “Rarely” is noted.

Often do  

Translate the corporate vision and set a clear purpose for the team
Plan, manage and deliver change competently
Own and deliver corporate messages with credibility
Communicate and cascade information - ask for feedback and take action to
respond
Champion and role model equality, diversity and inclusion
Protect and maintain own and others health and well-being 
Recruit, develop and retain the right people with the right skills
Have good conversations - say thank you and praise good work

Hold and record monthly team sessions to cascade information, discuss priorities
and receive feedback
Hold dedicated team sessions on a regular basis to explore better ways of
working - involving others with expertise as required
Undertake regular performance and development conversations (check-in’s) and
record appropriately
Recruit, manage and retain people following the agreed procedures,
demonstrating fairness and transparency
Tackle poor performance early and use good judgement as to when to trigger
formal procedures 

The Role of a Leader/Manager

Performing Well

Leading Well

Delivering Well
Understand and manage budgets – forecast accurately and quickly addresses
issues
Assess and manage risk well and manage contracts appropriately
Make well informed decisions and support robust decision making at the
appropriate level
Understand and report on performance in order to continuously improve
Manage services and projects well 
Design and deliver fully inclusive and accessible services for our citizens
Ask citizens and customers for feedback and use customer insight to improve
services 
Understand, manage and protect information, using data to drive change and
improvement

intranet.nottinghamcity.gov.uk/leadingmanagingtogether

Always do  Rarely do  

Page 50

http://intranet.nottinghamcity.gov.uk/leadingmanagingtogether
http://intranet.nottinghamcity.gov.uk/leadingmanagingtogether


Support available to be the best leader you can be to achieve the best outcomes for the city.

Leadership of Self

Learning & Development

Our leadership principles
To build understanding of our leadership framework and the concept of distributed leadership.
To explore what it means to be a leader at NCC and how to lead within the context we operate in

Module 1

Aims
Leading Well

Our Leadership Framework 

Leading Others and the Organisation

Leading Change

eLearning Virtual workshop

Authentic Leadership

Face to face session

Workshop – 90 Minutes

Workshop – Full Day 

Workshop – 90 Minutes

Creating an Inclusive 
Workplace

Change Masterclass Workshop – 2 Hours

Equality in the Workplace eLearning – 45 Minutes 

Learning Zone

Completion is expected MANAGERSEssential Learning SLMG

Insight into your expected contribution to the organisation, your responsibilities and
your development.

What are the individual talents, beliefs and values you bring to leadership? How does a
Directorate Leadership Team build on authentic individual approaches to inspire and
lead together? This full day workshop explores leadership from the inside to out.

To help you effectively lead and manage change, you will be taken through the
change process, practice using change methodologies and take time to understand
how change impacts on individuals.

This workshop will explore approaches to help anticipate change and disruption, and
explore tactics to lead through the uncertainties we face.

Workshop – 90 Minutes
Understand what it means to be a fully inclusive workplace and how, as a manager,
you can actively promote equality, diversity and inclusion through your actions.

Understand the fundamentals of Equality, Diversity and Inclusion in the context of the
Equality Act 2010, Public Sector Equality Duty and your responsibilities as a Manager.

All development dates & course details are available on the Learning Zone

Political Awareness  Workshop – 3 hours 
To get things done in any large organisation, political awareness and political skills
are essential. This workshop will help improve your ability to read political and social
situations.

Page 51

https://nottinghamcity.learningpool.com/login/index.php


Learning & Development

Module 2

Aims
Performing Well

Objective Setting & Setting
Direction

eLearning Virtual workshop

Support available to be the best leader you can be to achieve the best outcomes for the city.

Face to face session

eLearning - 45 Minutes

Workshop – 90 Minutes

Individual Performance Reviews
– Holding Others to Account

Resolution & Grievance

Our performance expectations
To build understanding and help embed the NCC behavioural expectations.
To support leaders and colleagues embed a positive approach to individual performance
reviews

Our Behaviour Expectations
What you do and how to do it 

Managing Absence

Managing Disciplinary 

Learning Zone

Completion is expected MANAGERSEssential Learning SLMG

eLearning – 45 Minutes 

eLearning – 45 Minutes 

eLearning – 45 Minutes 

What do the new Leadership behaviours mean to you? Why we have them, what they are
and how to use them. Your questions answered.

Improve the performance of individuals and your team by being clear about what's
expected of them. This eLearning is pre-requisite to completing the Individual
Performance Review workshop.

Workshop – 90 Minutes

How to make the most of Individual Performance Reviews to build and support high
performing teams, through motivation as well as holding people to account.

Workshop – 90 MinutesManaging Performance and
Capability
This workshop will take you through your responsibilities as a leader for managing
performance as well as support and knowledge for managing the capability process.

All development dates & course details are available on the Learning Zone

HR for Managers: The Basics  
Early intervention and good conversations are key to managing people well.  You also need to know
how & when to escalate through formal HR processes.

Page 52

https://nottinghamcity.learningpool.com/login/index.php


Completion is expected MANAGERS

Learning & Development

Module 3

Aims
Delivering Well

Essential Learning

 Councillor – Officer Roles

eLearning Virtual workshop

Learning Zone

Support available to be the best leader you can be to achieve the best outcomes for the city.

Face to face session

Workshop – 5 Hours

SLMG

Equality Impact Assessments 

Finance for Decision Makers 
– CIPFA 

Finance Fundamentals

Decision Making Arrangements

Risk Management

Using Customer Insight to 
Design Services

Workshop – 90 Minutes 

Our delivery expectations
To outline what our leaders need to deliver and what we expect them to do.
Doing the basics well. 
To support our leaders understand how to manage and deliver the desired outcomes.

eLearning – 45 Minutes 

eLearning – 45 Minutes 

Writing Effective Reports & 
Decisions

Help you to implement the CIPFA FM Code locally & critical finance and governance
issues within the Council & to raise awareness of how to address these matters.

Understand the constitution and how decisions are made within the Council.

Explore the roles and relationships of Councillors/Officers to work effectively in a
political environment.

eLearning – 45 Minutes 
Learn how to produce decision forms and committee reports using straightforward and
easy to understand language to aid clarity in decision making.

eLearning – 45 Minutes 
Know how to produce a good Equality Impact Assessment and be confident in using
them when making key decisions.

eLearning – 45 Minutes 
Know what your financial responsibilities are as a manager, the financial context that
we operate in and the regulations we are governed by.

eLearning – 45 Minutes 

A workshop for senior leaders delivered jointly by Zurich & NCC’s Risk Management
team.

Develop your services by using customer insight to gain a real understanding of your
customers' beliefs, needs or desires.

All development dates & course details are available on the 

Risk Management Workshop

Learn more about the NCC approach to Risk Management and how to effectively
manage risk in your team and service.

Workshop – 3 Hours

Page 53

https://nottinghamcity.learningpool.com/login/index.php


Continuous Development
Support available to be the best leader you can be to achieve the best outcomes for the city.

Learning & Development

eLearning Virtual workshop

Learning Zone

Face to face session

All development dates & course details are available on the

Available to SLMG & Managers

As you complete the essential programme and reflect on your learning, you may identify some additional
development needs. 

There will be a range of workshops available to commission from the Development and Change team as
part of your continuous development. 

These are intended to develop practices that support our Behaviour Expectations and complement the
essential learning for Leadership, Performance and Delivery

Individual Performance Reviews: Mid-way and End-year support sessions

Coaching Skills to Empower Others

Creative Problem Solving

Meaningful Conversations

Cultural Competence

Project Management/Business Change: To be confirmed aligned to Transformation

Contact the Development and Change Team to discuss your needs:

0115 876 3823

developmentandchange@nottinghamcity.gov.uk 

Page 54

https://nottinghamcity.learningpool.com/login/index.php


1 
 

Theme / 
Programme  

Theme 6 – Organisation and Culture Report Date 20/12/21 Reporting period 20/12/21 -  

 Current Status  Red 

Theme 
/Programme  
Manager 

TBC Programme Confidence    Amber 

Theme / 
Programme 
Accountable 
Officer / Lead 

Mel Barrett – Chief Executive 
(Officer) 

 

Cllr Cheryl Barnard – Portfolio 
Holder Children and Young 
People;   

Cllr Eunice Campbell-Clarke – 
Portfolio Holder for Leisure, 
Culture & Schools 

 

Overall Amber Scope Green Deliverable  Amber Resource Amber 

  

Brief Description Theme / Programme Scope: RAG Amber 

The Recovery and Improvement Plan contains a number of significant changes to the Council’s processes and key documents.  However, there is 
a recognition that these will only be effective if it is also accompanied by wider changes in the organisation’s structure and culture.  Theme 6 
addresses this work and its scope includes: 
 

- Setting a clear and updated performance management review process starting at the Chief Executive and cascading down across the 
Council. 

- Simplifying the officer structure 
- Creating and delivering an extensive culture and workforce development programme to ensure that the changes in the Recovery and 

Improvement Plan are embedded along with the new ways of working that are enshrined within them. 

Scope changed from the last reporting?   Tick if yes    

A number of amendments have taken place through the refresh of the Recovery and Improvement Plan, the main one being for this section the 
movement of the PMF into Theme 8. 

P
age 55



2 
 

Reporting Period Progress Executive Summary 
Summary overview and list of items needing to be bought to the attention of / escalated for a decision to Programme Board 
 

This period has been a continuation of last in terms of communicating and engaging with colleagues across the council in relation to our 
extensive development offer, all designed to positively influence the organisational culture and improve performance. 
 
These include: 

 Leading and Managing Together; Leadership development for c.800 managers  

 Accelerated Development Programme; providing structured development and opportunities for those from under-represented groups 
and with protected charcteristics, to support our EDI ambitions  

 Change Academy; looking to identify, recruit and train a number of ‘change agents’ aligned to the transformation programme.  
 
In addition, we are working closely with the Nottingham Trent University to design a ‘city wide’ programme focused on transformational 
leadership, bringing selected leaders from NCC together with those from key partner agencies.  
 
To further support our EDI agenda, a series of focus groups with senior leaders across the organisation have also been supported, following a 
powerful presentation from the Action for Change Equality (ACE) Network at Senior Leadership Forum, based on their experiences of racism.  
  
Interest and engagement in all programmes has been positive to date and will help us start to shape and embed the desired culture.  
 
Connected to the Recovery & Improvement work we have been supporting engagement around our budget consultation, hosting a series of 
events with colleagues and citizens, both virtual/online and face-to-face. These have provided information and an opportunity to hear views, 
feedback and suggestions. The notes of sessions are captured and also shared on our intranet site. Colleagues have engaged well and offered 
alternative things for leaders to consider, as well as sharing their concerns about the budget and how services will be delivered.   
 
The focus of Team Brief this period was again crafted in partnership with the Transformation Office (theme 7) to ensure a joined up approach to 
change. It covered the refresh of the Recovery and Improvement Plan – sharing our new strapline ‘Together for Nottingham’ in order to build 
morale and momentum for change. As well as how to get involved in the development programmes and views on the budget position.   
 
Videos have also been filmed with Corporate Leadeship Team to use in our engagement activites for the IPR roll-out in the new year.  
 

P
age 56



3 
 

Milestone & Deliverable Progress – Insert additional rows for projects as required. 
 

Deliverable: RAG Amber 

Projects Milestone / Deliverable Plan 
Date  

Actual 
Date 
 

Comments 

Project 1 – Setting Top – 
Level Goals 

Final draft of proposed top level goals to 
CEX for review and approval 

End of 
Feb 21 

 Complete.  

Identify and agree CEX appraisal 
mechanism 

End of 
Feb 21 

 Complete. 
The use of the JNC process will be adopted – 
agreed by all parties. 
 
ACOS sign off is not required. 
 
An external facilitator will be utilised as per the 
JNC guidance – agreed/supported by CEX. 
 

External partner identified and secured to 
assist in facilitation of PA process. 
 

April 21  Complete 
 

Adoption of the Chief Executive 
Performance Appraisal Procedure to 
commence April 2021. 
 

April 21  Complete 

Start of year conversation – setting of 
objectives 

April / 
May 

 Complete 

Mid-Year Review conversation 
 

Nov-Dec 
21 

 Complete 

End-Year Review conversation 
 

April/ 
May 22 
 

  

P
age 57



4 
 

Milestone & Deliverable Progress – Insert additional rows for projects as required. 
 

Deliverable: RAG Amber 

Projects Milestone / Deliverable Plan 
Date  

Actual 
Date 
 

Comments 

Project 2 – Simplifying 
the Officer Structure 
 

ACOS report on Corporate Director 
structure 

Feb 21  Complete. 
Approved by ACOS 19/02/21 
 

Develop principles on which to review 
phase 2 of the structure 

Q1 21/22  Complete. 
Final version approved at CLT 4th May. 
 

Engagement with CLT and Cllrs on principles 
and approach of working with LGA. 

30 March 
and early 
April 

 Complete. 
Engaged with CLT, trade unions and Cllrs/pfh. 
Complete and all content with final principles. 
 

Engagement with CLT and LGA (subject to 
approval) on desk top exercise of areas to 
begin service reviews. 

Q1 21/22 
 

 Complete. 
W/c 26th April LGA to undertake desk top 
review. Structures being collated at present.  
DLTs to input and 4th May decisions to be 
finalised. Comms and training will begin 
following this.  
 
First three Director areas have been agreed, 
working with LGA and Director PA’s to identify 
roles and get conversations booked in. 
Corporate comms to managers and staff have 
commenced and training of staff to facilitate 
conversations started w/c 17th May. Training is 
nearly complete, over 30 staff all together. 
Shadowing LGA conversations with staff will 

P
age 58



5 
 

Milestone & Deliverable Progress – Insert additional rows for projects as required. 
 

Deliverable: RAG Amber 

Projects Milestone / Deliverable Plan 
Date  

Actual 
Date 
 

Comments 

complete the training, this is ongoing and will be 
complete in August.   
 

Complete outstanding Corporate Director 
appointments 
 

Q1 21/22 
 

 Complete.  
All four CDIRs recruited and appointed. Start 
dates agreed. 
 

ACOS report on Corporate Director 
structure 

Feb 21  Complete  

ACOS report 2 on Director / HOS structure 
 

Q4 21/22  Corporate directors and directors to review the 
structural requirements of their own 
directorates. Any changes that fall under the 
remit of ACOS will be presented to ACOS in a 
report. This will continue in to Q3 to capture 
recommendations from each division and the 
links between them. 
 

Train colleagues to support the DMA 
process 

Q2 21/22  Complete and ongoing lessons learned 

Undertake structured DMA interviews and 
conversations with 17 Divisions across the 
Council 

Q1 to Q4 
2021/22 

 13 of 17 underway.  

P
age 59



6 
 

Milestone & Deliverable Progress – Insert additional rows for projects as required. 
 

Deliverable: RAG Amber 

Projects Milestone / Deliverable Plan 
Date  

Actual 
Date 
 

Comments 

Provide structured DMA report, including 
themes and recommendations for each 
area 

Q2 to Q4 
2021/22 

 Taking place after every division has a complete 
report.  

Informal and formal consultation on phase 
2 of senior structure of the Council 
restructure. To take place across whole 
Council. 

Q3 & Q4 
2021/22 
And Q1 
22/23 

 Consultation will start to take place when the 
whole Council has been reviewed to ensure 
overall impact is taken account of and other 
Corporate reviews are fed in. Council wide that 
will be Q1 next year. Urgent ones could start in 
Q3.  

Provide structured DMA report, including 
themes and recommendations for each 
area. Proposed recommendations to go to 
CLT, ACOS and/or collective consultation as 
appropriate. 

Q2 to Q4 
2021/22 

 1st report back to CLT 21st Sept and will be 
reporting back monthly. Reports are provided to 
Directors & Corporate Directors after every area 
has been seen. On target and on going. 

Project 3 – Performance 
Management 
Framework 

 

Cascade CEX targets to Corporate Directors Q2 21/22  Complete.  
CEX has cascaded objectives to all four CDIRs 
aligned to the new SCP.  
 

Attend CLT – re IPR (performance 
appraisal) 

02/02/21 
 

 Complete.  
New behaviours and contra indicators shared 
with CLT on 02.02.21 and on 09.02.21.  
No further comments from CLT members.  

P
age 60



7 
 

Milestone & Deliverable Progress – Insert additional rows for projects as required. 
 

Deliverable: RAG Amber 

Projects Milestone / Deliverable Plan 
Date  

Actual 
Date 
 

Comments 

Agree the design of the individual 
performance reviews (IPR) for SLMG and 
implement by end Q1 
 

Q1 21/22  Complete. 
Design of approach and paperwork now 
complete and shared with Chief Exec and CLT 
who approved implemented.  
New approach launched on 7 June 2021.  

Design guidance and toolkit to support the 
embedding of the new individual 
performance framework for SLMG 
colleagues 

Q1 21/22  Complete.  
 
A range of guidance and support has been 
offered, including drop-in sessions and 
development opportunities.  
 

Embed the Director/HOS individual 
performance framework 

Q2-Q4 
21/22 
 

 In progress. 
 
Work has commenced to socialise and embed 
the new approach and new behavioural 
expectations, including comms, engagement and 
development interventions.  
 
Mid-year support sessions are being offered and 
training on the new Oracle Fusion system so IPRs 
can be transferred to the new system.   

P
age 61



8 
 

Milestone & Deliverable Progress – Insert additional rows for projects as required. 
 

Deliverable: RAG Amber 

Projects Milestone / Deliverable Plan 
Date  

Actual 
Date 
 

Comments 

Measure and report on IPR completions and 
quality for SLMG colleagues - refine process 
as required 

Q1 & Q4 
21/22 

 In progress. 
Sample testing will take place at mid-year period 
(Nov/Dec) to explore how well the new IPR 
approach is being used and identify and issues.  
 
Reports will be generated and sample testing 
undertaken to assess how well the new 
approach to IPR has been utilised and the 
difference it is making.   
 
 

Design approach to IPR and roll out plan for 
non-SLMG colleagues, including 
engagement/consultation with all 
stakeholders 
 

Q2/Q3 
21/22 

 In Progress.  
 
A range of activities and supporting materials 
are being designed, including videos with CLT.  
Activity will commence in Q4 (Jan-Mar) to 
prepare colleagues for the new approach and 
make the change land well.  
 

Design guidance and toolkit to support the 
embedding of the new individual 
performance framework for non-SLMG 
colleagues 
 

Q3/ Q4 
21/22 

 In progress. 
 
A range of activites and development is being 
designed. See above.  

P
age 62



9 
 

Milestone & Deliverable Progress – Insert additional rows for projects as required. 
 

Deliverable: RAG Amber 

Projects Milestone / Deliverable Plan 
Date  

Actual 
Date 
 

Comments 

Engage with all leaders/managers on the 
individual performance review  

Q3/Q4 
21/22 
 

 Complete.  
 
New behaviours consulted upon and refined 
following feedback.  
Further engagement with all colleagues to 
commence in January ahead of further IPR roll 
out.  
 

Engage with all colleagues 
(comms/engagement plan) re: new 
approach to IPR – briefings, support, 
training 
 

Q4 21/22  To commence in Jan ’22.  

Deliver/launch new approach to IPR for non 
SLMG roles 

Q1 22/23  To commence in Jan ’22. 

Embed the new approach to IPR with non-
SLMG colleagues 

Q2 / Q4 
22/23 

  

Measure and report on IPR completions and 
quality for non-SLMG colleagues - refine 
process as required 

Q1 23/24   

Project 4 – Culture and 
Workforce Development 

Attend Senior Leadership Forum – 
introduction to workstream 

03/02/21 
 

 Complete. 
CLT attended on the 2nd Feb and Leadership 3rd 
Feb to introduce culture and organisation work-
stream.  

P
age 63



10 
 

Milestone & Deliverable Progress – Insert additional rows for projects as required. 
 

Deliverable: RAG Amber 

Projects Milestone / Deliverable Plan 
Date  

Actual 
Date 
 

Comments 

 

Develop and agree Leadership Capability 
Framework principles (LCF) 

Feb 21 
 

 Complete. 
LCF and strategic level behaviours shared with 
CLT on 02/02/21, discussed again on 09/02/21. 
 
CLT have agreed the design of the LCF and for it 

to be shared with SLMG colleagues.  

 

Leadership Framework sent to SLMG on 
16/03/21 and awaiting any 
comments/observations with a closing date of 
26/03/21.   
  

Attend CLT - Culture mapping approach   09/02/21  Complete. 
Desktop review of culture mapping underway. 
Culture mapping survey has been sent to CLT 
members to be returned by 05/02/21. 
Session conducted with CLT on 09/02/21 where 
results of early culture mapping were shared.  
 

Culture mapping senior leadership Feb 21  Complete. 
Culture survey now sent to all SLMG with return 
date of 16/02/21. 
 

P
age 64



11 
 

Milestone & Deliverable Progress – Insert additional rows for projects as required. 
 

Deliverable: RAG Amber 

Projects Milestone / Deliverable Plan 
Date  

Actual 
Date 
 

Comments 

Complete – 52 returns received. Results shared 
with CLT on 23.02.21.  
 

Attend CLT – Initial findings from Culture 
Mapping 

23/02/21  Complete.  
 
All SLMG results shared and discussed. 
 

Undertake Culture Mapping exercise 
(survey and focus groups) with non-SLMG 
colleagues 

Mar 21  Complete. 
Survey closed receiving 1300 responses. Results 
are now being analysed.  
 
Focus groups have been taking place over the 
last two weeks (x7 sessions) to be completed by 
12/03/21. Output will be analysed and all 
findings were presented and discussed at CLT on 
21/04/21 
 

Attend Senior Leadership Forum – update 
on culture-mapping and then share 
behaviours.  
  

03/03/21  Complete. 
Comments/views on behaviours by 26/03/21. 
 
 

Attend CLT – 2 hour culture findings and 
change narrative session  

21/04/21 
 

 Complete. 
Session attended.  
 

P
age 65



12 
 

Milestone & Deliverable Progress – Insert additional rows for projects as required. 
 

Deliverable: RAG Amber 

Projects Milestone / Deliverable Plan 
Date  

Actual 
Date 
 

Comments 

Design/create comms and engagement plan 
for RIP, including creation of Team Brief 
cascade process and dynamic forward plan 
of messaging  

Q1-Q4 
21/22 
 

 In progress. 
A comms plan has been developed in relation to 
the R&IP utilising several channels to share key 
messages and encourage feedback, including 
recording of Senior Leadership Forum and Team 
Brief.  
 
Culture findings have been woven into comms, 
particularly in relation to the new approach to 
performance appraisals. 
 
 

Design and deliver comms and engagement 
activities to share findings of culture 
mapping (current state), change narrative 
and future desired state  

Q1-Q4 
2021/22 

 In progress. 
 
See new/amended milestones: 
A change narrative has been developed in 
partnership with the new Director of 
Transformation, which includes a strapline and 
new branding to engage and motivate the 
workforce regarding our future ambitions.  
 
This will be first utilised on the refresh of the RIP 
in December/January.  
 
 

P
age 66



13 
 

Milestone & Deliverable Progress – Insert additional rows for projects as required. 
 

Deliverable: RAG Amber 

Projects Milestone / Deliverable Plan 
Date  

Actual 
Date 
 

Comments 

Create long change narrative, short 
narrative and strapline to be woven 
through all comms/engagement activity, 
including new branding for RIP (in 
partnership with Transformation Office) 

Q3/Q4 
21/22 

 In progress. 
 
New branding has been designed and will be 
used on the refresh of the RIP in the first 
instance.   

Seek LGA resources to fund a coaching 
(coaching for performance) programme for 
CDs/CLT/CEX, to determine the remit and 
use to support cascading of targets  
 

Q1-Q4 
21/22 
 

 In Progress. 
LGA resources have been identified and 
coaching spec developed – coaches to be 
sourced and matched to participants.  
 

Develop Leadership Capability framework 
including competencies and behaviours for 
Directors and SLMG roles.  

Q2 21/22 
 

 Completed. 
LCF now shared with SLMG colleagues and 
integral part of the new approach to IPRs. 
   

Comms/engagement activities re new 
message mapping and vision including 
identifying change champions. CLT and 
Directors to be actively involved in 
messaging and engagement to support and 
drive the organisational changes. Sessions, 
briefings, events to be organised and 
mapped 

Q2 21/22 
 

 In progress. 
 
Team Brief being used, plus Senior Leadership 
Forum.  

P
age 67



14 
 

Milestone & Deliverable Progress – Insert additional rows for projects as required. 
 

Deliverable: RAG Amber 

Projects Milestone / Deliverable Plan 
Date  

Actual 
Date 
 

Comments 

Design and deliver first leadership 
development programme to help embed 
leadership framework and new behavioural 
expectations.  

Q3-Q4   Now ‘live’. 
 
Final approval and support given by CLT on 9 
November and programme launched on 15 
November. A range of blended learning has 
been designed around three core modules and 
completion of all leader/managers is expected.  
 

Design and deliver and/or commission a 
range of development activity for councillors 

Q1 – Q4 
2022/202
3 

 In progress.  

Further develop Leadership Capability 
Framework including competencies and new 
behavioural expectations for non-SLMG 
colleagues, including 
consultation/engagement with all 
stakeholders   

 

Q2 – Q3 
2022/202
3 

 Complete. 

LGA to facilitate an external review of HR 
practice re EDI focussed on 
recruitment/selection/progression  

Q3 21/22 
 

 In progress.  
Proposed EDI review has been scoped and a 
proposal put together for stakeholders to 
consider before any action commences in Q2-
Q3.  
 

P
age 68



15 
 

Milestone & Deliverable Progress – Insert additional rows for projects as required. 
 

Deliverable: RAG Amber 

Projects Milestone / Deliverable Plan 
Date  

Actual 
Date 
 

Comments 

Seek LGA resources to procure and fund an 
Accelerated Development Programme for 
people with protected characteristics to 
support NCC EDI ambitions 

Q3 21/22  In progress. 
Scope and proposal developed to share with key 
stakeholders. 
Plan in development with proposed first cohort 
to be identified/recruited in Q3 and to 
commence delivery in Q4.   
  

Evaluate, refine and deliver more cohorts as 
appropriate (Non SLMG)   

Q1 / Q2 
2022/20
23 

  

LGA to facilitate an external review of HR 
practice re EDI focussed on 
recruitment/selection/progression 

Q3 
2021/20
22 

  

Specification for commissioned elements of 
the EDI programme refined/complete and 
put out to potential providers. 

Q3 
2021/20
22 

 Complete.  

Develop branding, communications and 
application process ready for launch. 

Q3 
2021/20
22 

 In progress. 

Begin identification and recruitment 
process (in-house) 

Q3 
2021/20
22 

 In progress. 
 
Attending DLTs and sending comms. Engaged 
with Networks and TUs. 

P
age 69



16 
 

Milestone & Deliverable Progress – Insert additional rows for projects as required. 
 

Deliverable: RAG Amber 

Projects Milestone / Deliverable Plan 
Date  

Actual 
Date 
 

Comments 

First ADP cohort to be begin – delivery of 
interventions 

Q4 
2021/20
22 

  

 Evaluate, refine and deliver more ADP 
cohorts as appropriate   

Q1 to Q2 
2022/20
23 

  

. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Key Risks  
Insert additional rows for projects if necessary – but try to keep to top 5 

Top 5 Risk  Risk Description Severity  Action Owner 

Specialist support unavailable 
within timescales (Projects 3 and 
4) 

The potential unavailability of 
sufficient and suitable resource 
means that timescales could be 
missed or a product delivered not 
to the required standard.  

Red Initial resourcing requirements 
outlined to Finance / HR so funding 
can be allowed for and the process of 
recruitment started. 
 

Richard 
Henderson 

P
age 70



17 
 

 
Additional OD capacity is required 
to avoid non-delivery of key 
activity including non SLMG 
leadership capability framework, 
non-SLMG workforce performance 
review. This work will require 
significant amounts of 
consultation/engagement.  
 

Some limited additional capacity has 
been found to support internal 
comms and engagement.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The R&IP has an adverse impact 
on morale (Projects 3 and 4) 

The scrutiny the Council is under 
and the changes it needs to make 
may negatively impact morale and 
subsequently performance, 
absence and retention. 

Amber Comms and engagement will play a 
key part in the delivery of changes to 
the PMT and culture.  Whilst change is 
required it can also be presented as 
an opportunity which may help 
counter risks to morale and retention. 

Titu Hayre-
Bennett 

Resistance to change (Projects 3 
and 4) 

Resistance could come at any level 
of the organisation and could be 
general or more specific, for 
example around officers not 
engaging with the new PMF 
processes. 

Amber The cultural change element of the 
programme will support all other 
facets of it and specifically look to 
target how the impact of resistance to 
change can be diminished. 

Titu Hayre – 
Bennett 

P
age 71



18 
 

That LGA resources underpinning 
a number of change activity is not 
forthcoming (Project 4) 

The culture and workforce 
development project relies on 
securing resources from the LGA to 
achieve the delivery of three 
milestones in Q1 and Q3 21/22.  
Failure to secure this resource will 
impinge on the project’s ability to 
deliver this work. 

Amber Early and continued engagement with 
the LGA and development of 
contingency plans should the resource 
not be forthcoming. 

Titu Hayre – 
Bennett 

 
 
 
 

Key Issues  
Insert additional rows for projects if necessary – but try to keep to top 5 

Top 5 Issues – could be all 1 Project 
or 5 separate ones 

Issue Description Severity  Action Owner 

     

No issues currently recorded in this reporting period 
 
 
 

Key Matters for Escalation  
Insert additional rows for projects if necessary – but try to keep to top 5 

Matter for Escalation Description Severity  Action Owner 

     

No matters for escalation recorded in this reporting period. 
 

 

P
age 72



19 
 

Interdependencies and Opportunities with other Themes / Programmes  
Insert additional rows for projects as required. Use for new or significant changes – so reporting by exception 

Project in this sub programme – add 
lines as necessary 

Project in another sub 
programme - name  

Interdependency / 
Opportunity 

Owner Action needed / Comments 

Theme 5 – Project 1Member / Officer 
roles and responsibilities 

Theme 6  - Project 4 Culture 
and Workforce Development 

Once approved the 
new protocol needs 
embedding via the 
cultural change work 

Richard 
Henderson 

Formal transfer once Member / 
Officer roles and responsibilities 
are agreed 

Theme 5 – Project 4  Updated 
Constitution 

Theme 6 – Project 2 
Simplifying the Officer 
Structure 

T6P2 needs doing 
first in order to make 
sure that the new 
roles can transfer 
into the constitution. 

Richard 
Henderson 
/ Malcolm 
Townroe 

Should be a simple exercise of 
mapping across as long as 
timelines are aligned. 

Theme 6 – Project 3 Performance 
Management Framework 

Theme 5 – Project 3 Review 
of Portfolios 

Agreement on likely 
shape of portfolios 
required to allow 
PMF consultation to 
take place 

Ita 
O’Donovan 

Awareness between projects so 
consultation on T6 P3 takes place 
with the correct consultees. 

Theme 6 – Project 3 Performance 
Management Framework 

Theme 6 – Project 4 Culture 
and Workforce Development 

The need to take the 
PMF into account 
when future 
decisions are made 
needs embedding 
within the Council’s 
processes and 
culture. 

Titu Hayre-
Bennett 

Ensure requirement is picked up 
in cultural change work-stream 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

P
age 73



20 
 

Financial Implications In This Reporting Period 
Projects with major or unexpected FI or significant milestone e.g. where approval eg PHD granted 

Project add as necessary Cost Incurred Reason Approved Action needed / Comments 

     

No financial implications noted in this reporting period – save for the request for additional resource 
 

P
age 74



 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
9 February 2022 

 
Work Programme 2021/22 
 
Report of the Head of Legal and Governance 
 
1 Purpose 
 
1.1 To consider the Committee’s work programme for 2021/22. 
 
2 Action required 
 
2.1 The Committee is asked to consider the work programme for the 

remainder of the municipal year and make any amendments as required 
 
3 Background information 

 
3.1 The purpose of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee is to ensure all 

statutory and other roles and responsibilities are fulfilled to the required 
standard, covering review and development of key strategic issues, 
policies and strategies relevant to Nottingham and its residents, and 
adding value through the examination of issues of local importance and 
concern. 
 

3.2 The Committee is responsible for setting and managing its own work 
programme to fulfil this role. 

 
3.3 In setting a programme for scrutiny activity, the Committee should aim 

for an outcome-focused work programme that has clear priorities and a 
clear link to its roles and responsibilities. The work programme needs to 
be flexible so that issues which arise as the year progresses can be 
considered appropriately.  

 
3.4 Where there are a number of potential items that could be scrutinised in 

a given year, consideration of what represents the highest priority or 
area of risk will assist with work programme planning. Changes and/or 
additions to the work programme will need to take account of the 
resources available to the Committee.  

 
3.5 The Committee has agreed to focus much of its scrutiny in 2021/22 on 

the Council’s recovery and improvement, including implementation of the 
recommendations from the Report in the Public Interest concerning the 
Council’s governance arrangements for Robin Hood Energy Ltd (PIR) 
and the Non-Statutory Review of Nottingham City Council (NSR), both of 
which took place in 2020. In order to ensure that scrutiny is timely and 
relevant, the Committee will need to regularly consider its scheduling of 
recovery and improvement items for scrutiny at future meetings.  

 
3.6 The Committee’s current work programme is included at Appendix 1. 

Page 75

Agenda Item 6



 

4 List of attached information 
 
4.1 Overview and Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 2021/22. 
 
5 Background papers, other than published works or those 

disclosing exempt or confidential information 
 
5.1 None 
 
6 Published documents referred to in compiling this report 
 
6.1 Reports to and discussion at Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

meetings throughout 2021/22. 
 
7 Wards affected 
 
7.1 All 
 
8 Contact information 
 
8.1 Laura Wilson  
 Senior Governance Officer  
 0115 8764301  
 laura.wilson@nottinghamcity.gov.uk  
 

Page 76

mailto:laura.wilson@nottinghamcity.gov.uk


Overview and Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 2021-22 
 

Date Items 

9 March 2022  Together for Nottingham Update from the Leader 
10-15-minute update from the Leader on progress against priorities in the Together for Nottingham Plan 
Improvement 
 

 Asset Rationalisation 
To consider the effectiveness of the work being undertaken in the Asset Rationalisation workstream of the recovery 
and improvement work 

 

 Scrutiny Action Plan Update 

To receive an update on the progress made in implementing the Action Plan and working towards the targets 

 Work Programme 2022-23 Development 
To work on ideas for inclusion on the work programme for the next municipal year, maintaining the focus on 
recovering and improvement 
 

 2021-22 Work Programme 
 

6 April 2022  Together for Nottingham Update from the Leader 
10-15-minute update from the Leader on progress against priorities in the Together for Nottingham Plan 
Improvement 
 

 Customer Service Transformation 
To consider the effectiveness of the transformation work underway with Customer Service 
 

 2021-22 Work Programme 
 

 
Space has been left in the work programme to retain flexibility in order to accommodate timely scrutiny of issues in relation to recovery and 
improvement, ie items scheduled may need to be moved to later meeting dates to facilitate this.  The items below may be scheduled if there are 
gaps in the work programme or if they become priorities. 
 

Items still to be considered for work programme/ Reserve items 
 

 Workforce Reorganisation and Restructure  

To consider workforce reorganisation and restructure in the light of the need to achieve recovery and the impact on policy and essential 
services; and in the light of the impact of Covid and reinstatement of the workforce.   
 

P
age 77



Items still to be considered for work programme/ Reserve items 
 

 Governance  
To consider the impact of constitutional and other governance changes introduced in response to recommendations for improvement and 
recovery 

 Planning Enforcement 
To consider the effectiveness of the Planning Enforcement process, including resourcing (finance and workforce arrangements), with 
particular reference to retrospective planning applications, especially in student areas.  

 Citizenship/ immigration service provision and support  
Focus to be determined 

 Houses of Multiple Occupation and selective licensing 
Focus to be determined 

 Student Accommodation 
To consider whether the number of developments meet demand and free up family housing 

 Scooter Pilot 
To consider the success of the wind scooter trial, including the illegal use of scooters and enforcement, measures of success, evaluation 
and plans for the future   

 Crime and Drugs Partnership 
To consider information on the current work of the Crime and Drugs Partnership (focus to be agreed; suggestion is ASB, including 
domestic violence and neighbourhood disputes and impact on community policing and protection) and performance against the Crime 
and Drugs Partnership Plan 

 Digitalisation and Transformation 
Focus to be agreed 
Referral from CYPSC  
To look at current digital access across the city; how this impacts on access to services particularly given the likelihood that there will be 
continued emphasis on virtual/ online provision for the foreseeable future; and what can be done to address these issues 

 Nottingham’s Carbon Neutral Policy 
To explore the impact of the budget, delays because of COVID, schemes/ engagement with other bodies and partners on achievement of 
carbon neutral targets  

 Library Services Transformation Programme  
To consider whether the consultation on the Library Service redesign proposals has been fair, transparent and robust, and whether the 
draft proposals have adequately taken account of the consultation responses 

 Leisure Centre Transformation Programme  
To consider whether the consultation on the Leisure Centre redesign proposals has been fair, transparent and robust, and whether the 
draft proposals have adequately taken account of the consultation responses 

 Budget Consultation responses and methodology 

 Housing Revenue Account Investigation outcome 

 Municipal Waste Strategy 

 Council Plan Progress Monitoring 

 

P
age 78


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	O&S Budget 2022-23 Response

	4 Together for Nottingham Plan - Progress update by the Leader
	5 Culture Change at Nottingham City Council
	Report on Culture Change (Theme 6)
	Appendix 1: Culture Mapping Findings
	Appendix 2: Leading & Managing Together Brochure
	Appendix 3: Theme 6 Progress Report

	6 Work Programme
	O&S Work Programme


